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History of Clay and the Clay Hotel

This article is written for the pur-

pose of giving a thorough history of

the Hotel at Clay, Clay township, by
vhom erected, owned and operated to

i he present day; and many incidents

connected with its history; also, some
acts of the village of Clay, tracing the
original title to 1681.

William Penn on September 27th,

!i681, did grant and convey to Charles
.Tones, the elder, and Charles Jones,

(he younger, then of the city of Bristol,

England—soap boilers—2,000 acres of

[and to be laid out in the province of

Pennsylvania, yet unsurveyed. Charley
Jones, Jr., died without issue and
without making a partition of the prop-

erty—Charles Jones, Sr., became the

iiole owner.
On November 4th, 1711, Charles

Jones, Sr., granted -»nd conveyed
Ihese 2,000 acres to Esther Shippen,

then married to Edward Shippen.

!3aid Edward Shippen also died and
Esther Shippen, by survivorship, be-

queathed on August 4th, 1724, as fol-

lows: "As for and concerning the rest

and residue of said 2,000 acres (over

and besides certain 500 acres and 40

acres in said will specified) where
located and surveyed unto Edward
Shippen and Joseph Shippen, sons of

said Esther Shippen and to Margaret
Shippen, daughter of her son-in-law,

Edward Shippen, deceased each to re-

ceive 486 2-3 acres of the remaining
1,460 acres, when surveyed and grant-

ed by the proorietary jf Pennsyl-

vania."

This tract was surveyed in 1733,

>!our years after the organization of

Lancaster county.
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Joseph Shippen, Jr., merchant, re-

siding at Philadelphia, and Mary, his

wife, sold 100 acres of his tract to

Oswald Hostetter, on December 6th,

1740.

"The land is situated on a branch
county." Middle creek was not yet
named. The deed for the above men-
tioned tract of 100 acres is one of the
first deeds recorded in Lancaster, as it

appears in the first deed grantor book
on page 29, recorded May 11th, 1741.

Michael Shank and Oswald Hostetter
are mentioned as adjoiners. Mr. Hos-
tetter previously obtained 210 acres

from the proprietaries of Pennsyl-
vania.

Michael Shank obtained 388 acres

from said Joseph Shippen, Jr., mer-
chant, and Mary, his wife, at a previous
date. Thus Shank and Hostetter pur-

chased Joseph Shippen's share of the

land. Most of Shank's land is owned
by some of his descendants at this

date—Samuel Steinmetz, Grant Stein-

metz and F. S. Hess. This land is

located in Elizabeth township.
As previously stated, the surveys

were made in 1733, but not only of

these tracts, but of nearly 4,000 acres

embracing parts of the present con-

fines of Clay and Elizabeth townships.

The names, location and acreage are

in our possession.

Oswald Hostetter died about 1751,

leaving a widow, Mary; a son, John,

and three daughters, Frena or Ver-

onica, married to Abraham Herr;
Anna, married to John Mayer, and
Barbara, married to Samuel Singer.

John Hostetter, the son, was willed

his father's both tracts of land, 210

and 100 acres, respectively, on July

23d, 1751.

On November 5th, 1766, John Hos-
tetter and Barbara, his wife, of War-
wick township, sold to Michael Huber,
blacksmith, county and province
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aforesaid, 13 acres of the 100-acre

tract, without improvements, for 62

pounds, or about $310. Thi s would
indicate that part of the land was lo-

cated in Warwick township and part

in Cocalico township, Hostetter resid-

ing in the Warwick end and the thir-

teen-acre tract in Cocalico, as will ap-
pear later on.

In order to prove that the thirteen-

acre tract comes from the original

2,000 acres granted to the soapboilers

—drafts and descriptions indicate it

beyond a doubt.

John Hostetter, on May 26th, 1767,

sold 182 acres of land, situated in

Warwick township to Jacob Erb, of

Warwick township, being parts of

both tracts, as the title papers on
record at Lancaster clearly show.

Jacob Erb, however, did not reside on
the tract until a later date. He was
a noted and influential citizen. He
was a member of the Committee of

Safety during the Revolutionary War.
He was a member of the State Legis-

lature from 1787 to 1790. He was the

great-great-grandfather of the writer.

Michael Huber, who purchased the
thirteen-acre tract above mentioned,
without improvements, on- November
5th, 1766, erected the building on the

land in 1767, which is now known as

the Clay Hotel in Clay township. Grant
Steinmetz is the present proprietor.

The original building was not as

large and commodious a structure as

at present, three additions being
added to it since. The original build-

ing, however, yet standi and is a
stone structure and able to stand the

storms of another century.

It embraced what is now the bar-

room and a small kitchen in the rear
and two rooms above the bar-room.
Whether Mr. Huber conducted a

hotel is not positively known and can-

not be verified from the records in the
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Quarter Sessions office at Lancaster,

as those minutes are not all recorded.

The licenses at that time were not
granted by the Court, but were recom-
mended by the Court to the Governor
of the Province, who granted them.
However, tradition says it was a

public house at that period, although
Mr. Huber is again mentioned as

.blacksmith on March 26th, 1774, when
he and his wife, Anna Maria, sold the

property mentioned as in Cocalico

township, with improvements, to Mar-
tin Shank, of Warwick township, for

fiOO pounds or about $2,500. As far as

known, Mr. Huber continued to occupy
it as a tenant from the following in-

cident given to the writer some years

ago by two different descendants or

the family:

"Michael Huber had two daughters
in his family, Barbara and Christina."

To show that the place was one of

importance in this section of the coun-

ty, a draft of soldiers for the Revolu-

tionary War was taken at this house,

and Christina Huber, then a little girl,

was blindfolded and drew the names
from a box in accordance with the

usual custom.
Another important event in the lives

of these two daughters, Barbara and
Christina Huber, both nad the same
husband—Jacob Keller. Another co-

incidence—Mollie Erb married Samuel
Keller, a son of the first union. Her
brother, Da rid Erb, married Barbara
Keller, a daughter of the second
union.

Both had many descendants.

Peter Eberly was also a tenant and
conducted a public house at l^ast from
1784 to 1789—the previous records fail-

ing to specify. During this period the

building was enlarged by adding the
wing on the west end or from the
bar-room to the west end, being an ad-

dition of two rooms on each floor and
somewhat better material—finer stone.
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In 1789, Martin Shank, of Warwick
township, sold this property to Peter

Eberly, inn holder, then tenant, for

the same price as he had purchased it

in 1774, from Michael Huber—500
pounds, or $2,500. But strange as it

may seem. Peter Eberly and Catharine,

his wife, disposed of it at the same
time to Jacob Erb, already mentioned,
who owned the land adjoining on the
south, west and north, for 25 pounds,

or about $125 less than was paid for it

to Mr. Shank. As an indication that

Peter Eberly did not continue as

tenant for Jacob Erb, as he had for

Martin Shank—the records speak of

him as a resident of Manheim town-
ship—evidently his new home.
By this purchase of the thirteen-

acre tract, Jacob Erb restored it to

the original tract of 100 acres from
which it wa s taken in 1766, and it has

not separated from the main part ever

since.

My eyes beheld, I have in my pos-

session a finely executed draft of this

thirteen-acre plot.

Jacob Erb never occupied the hotel

building himself. He owned the mill

and all the land in and around the

present village of Clay, and the farm
to the southeast of the village now
owned by Ben. S. Risser's estate.

He moved to the present village of

Clay later in life. He resided in

what was known as the ''Corner

House," which tradition says was an

elder house than the hotel building.

It was demolished in 1911.

Mr. Erb died in this house in 1811,

just a century apart.

Who was the first tenant of the hotel

after it was purchased by Jacob Erb
cannot be determined, as some of the

records are mis.sing. It is believed

that Christian Young occupied it from
1793 to 1796.
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Evidently it was vacant from the

spring of 1796 until November, 1796.

At the November Quarter Sessions

Court a license was granted to Na-
thaniel Lightner, thus—"Jacob Erb's

house old tavern." Mr. Lightner was
granted license in the spring of 1797

and continued as landlord until the

spring of 1805.

During the time that Nathaniel
Lightner occupied the hotel it changed
owners—John Erb, one of the sons of

Jacob Erb, purchased it from his

father, and also the farms and mill

property.

Another important event took place

at this time. From the organization

of the county in 1729 until 1784 the

county and State elections were held

at the county .seat.

In 1785 Lancaster county was erect-

ed into four election districts. Co-

calico township belonged to the Fourth
district, with the polling place at New
Holland.

In 1786 Cocalico township was de-
tached from the Fourth district and
added to the First district, the Court
house at Lancaster borough being the

polling place.

In 1795 Cocalico and Elizabeth town-
ships were erected into a separate
election district, called the Fifth dis-

trict, with the polling place at the pub-
lic house of Henry Miller, in Cocalico
township. It was situated on the

cross-roads midway between Lincoln
and Ephrata, and is now occupied by
Samuel D. Erb.

In 1803 a new district was formed
from parts of Brecknock and Cocalico
townships, and called the Ninth dis-

trict, with Reamstown, in Cocalico
township, as the polling place.

Part of Warwick township was at-

tached to the other part of Cocalico
township, and the polling place of the
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Fifth district was moved to Nathaniel
Lightner's hotel, also in Cocalico
township, or the Clay Hotel, as it is

now called.

Thus, this house has continued to

be a polling place to this day, even
when it was kept a.s a private house
by the late George W. Steinmetz.fath-

er of the writer, from 1855 to 1868.

However, an effort was made by the
late William K. Furlow, in 1864, to

have the polling place taken to his

hotel, called Union, now Mount Airy,

which name it bears since 1876, al-

though Prof. Roddy is oblivious of

the fact.

Furlow had over 100 signers peti-

tioning the Court for a special election

to change the polling place. At the
election Steinmetz had 116 votes and
Furlow 32. The writer first saw the
light of day in this house, on a cold

October morning, according to the
diary of the late William J. Fraser,

who repaired grandfather's clock at

our house that day.

When Nathaniel Lightner vacated
this hotel in 1805, John V. Smith took

possassion and conducted it for a per-

iod of four years, until 1809.

John Winters moved into it at

this time, and remained until 1811.

He was a noted and popular man and
well spoken of years afterward.

The owner of the place, John Erb,

died in 1810. Hi.s son, John, became
the owner by inheritance. He took
possession in 1811.

He named it "The Red Lion Hotel,"

and had a handsome sign with the

picture of a lion swinging from a pole,

erected in front of the building.

He was the father of the following
children: The late Hiram Erb, of

Clay; the late John B. Erb, of LItitz;

the late Henry B. Erb. and the late
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Mrs. George W. Steinmetz, both of

Clay township.

He conducted the hotel for a period

of forty years, with the exception of

the year 1819, when Peter Weidner
occupied it, and again from 1822 to

1825, when it was rented by William
Strunk, Jacob Diffenderfer and Jacob
Garber respectively for a period of

one year each.

During part of the time of the first

incumbency from 1811 to 1819 Mr.
Erb also conducted a general .store in

the west end of the building, but this

proved an unprofitable venture and he
soon abandoned it.

During the time he had rented the

hotel to the parties above named, he
lived in the "Corner House," already
mentioned, and devoted his time to

operating the mill, close by, which he
had purchased from his brother,Isaac.

When he returned to the hotel in

1825 his son, Hiram, was placed in

the mill at the age of fifteen, and
practically remained there until 1869,

having purchased it from his father,

Joseph R. Royer, now residing at Lex-
ington, operated the mill one year.

Hiram Erb sold the mill in 1870 to

Michael S. Eberly, who, with his son,
Lewis G., yet resides thereon. Mr.
Eberly enlarged and remodeled it in

1875. The roller process is now in-

stalled. An older mill existed and
was converted into a .school-house,

used from 1787 to 1800. John Erb, an-

other son, and a hired man, John Sto-

ber by name, had charge of the farm
connected with the hotel.

When Mr. Erb first took possession
of the hotel in 1811 it was located in

Cocalico township; in 1812 the rec-

ords speak of it as Warwick township.-
However. in 1815, the boundary

lines of Cocalico and Elizabeth town-
ships were changed. Previous to that
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year the present village of Clay sep-

arated the townships, or, rather, Mid-
dle creek was the dividing line. The
village of Lincoln now became the

eastern boundary of Elizabeth town-
ship, which, desired more territory be-

cause a goodly portion of its former
territory was now embraced in Leb-
anon county, organized in 1813.

This hotel was continued as the

polling place of Elizabeth township
and part of Warwick township added
to it, which was detached in 1843 and
added to Lititz.

Elizabeth township was given two
polling places from 1852 to 1854 by
establishing a new one at Pennville,

which was abolished that year and
partnership dissolved by erecting two
townships, Clay and Elizabeth.

Application was made to the Quar-
ter Sessions Court in November,1853,
for the erection of this new township.
Emanuel Sheaffer, Morris Hoops and
William Carpenter, Esq., were appoint-

ed commissioners to take testimony.
They met at the Brickerville Hotel.

Samuel NLssley.a Justice of the Peace,
made the survey whereby Elizabeth
township would retain 10,216 acres

and the new township would obtain

13,648 acres. The commissioners de-

cided to grant the erection of the
township as surveyed, and call it

"Middle Creek township." They made
their report at the January Quarter
Sessions of 1854. It was not absolute-

ly confirmed until the April term of

Court. In the meantime, a petition

was circulated in the new township
protesting against calling it Middle
Creek township.

Jonas Lauber, who was a life-long

resident and an influential citizen in

Whig politics, consulted the father of

the writer, who suggested to Mr. Lau-
ber to write a personal letter to Judga
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Henry G. Long, protesting against tlie

proposed name, and suggest the name
of Clay township.

Accordingly, Mr. Lauber wrote the

letter to Judge Long, objecting to the

name Middle Creek township, for the

following reasons: "It is a long name,
hard to spell (and purposely spelled

it 'Middel Crick') and it is difficult to

remember. Therefore, I suggest the

name of 'Clay," in honor of the great

statesman."

According to the late Simon P. Eby,

who was present in Court when tnis

transaction took place, the letter of

Jonas Lauber received more consider-

ation than the petition. When Judge
Long turned to his colleagues on the

Bench and said: "If a citizen of the

intelligence and education of Mr. Lau-

ber does not know how to spell Middle
Creek, we will not call the new town-

ship that way, but name it Clay, as he
suggests—it meets all needs."

The records of the Quarter Sessions

Court office will bear me out in regard

to the petition and the letter.

Clay township retained the old poll-

ing place, but was called the Forty-
fifth election district, which it bears

to-day. Brickerville became the new
polling place of Elizabeth township,

and retained the former district num-
ber, which it holds today.

On May 12, 1854, special elections

were held in the two townships to fill

euch vacancies that occurred by the

division. In Clay township. H. S. Eb-
erly acted as judge and Adam Oberlin

and Martin Romig as inspectors. In

Elizabeth township, the election board

was David Carl, as Judge, and Moses
Brubaker and Lewis R. Hibshman as

inspectors. The Court appointed the.se

officers, as the records show The rec-

ords also show that Elizabeth town-

ship had more offices to fill than Clay,
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as the Clay end generally capture!
the big plums, having had both
'Squires.

Originally the western part of Lin-
coln, or New Ephrata as it was then
called, was included in Clay town-
ship, but was detached by special sur-
vey in 1856 and added to Ephrata
township.
The hotel at Clay, m Clay town-

ship, is a fertile field for the local his-

torian. Many scenes and incidents
connected with its history crowd upon
our memory as related by some of the
oldest inhabitants long since laid to

rest.

There were many stirring scenes
enacted on election days while the two
townships were yet together; the em-
ployes of Elizabeth Furnace and
Speedwell and Hopewell forges,

which were then yet in operation,

generally engaged in a free fight on
these occasions, and many bloody

conflicts took place.

On one occasion something out of

the ordinary occurred when two men,

who had been boon companions and
joint participants in many a question-

able adventure, fought a regular prize

fight in the orchard close by. The men
were Jacob Buffenmoyer and Joseph
Weidman. Both carried the marks
or scars of that conflict to their

graves. The former was minus a fin-

ger and the latter had a piece of

flesh taken from his cheek. He emi-

grated to Ohio some years later, and
when he was East fifty years ago the

writer saw him and noticed the scar

Mr. Erb also devoted some time to

politics, and in 1833 he was elected

County Commissioner on the Anti-

Masonic ticket and served with honor
and distinction. Three years later he
was a candidate for Sheriff, but was
handicapped in this that his 'party
ran two candidates, although at first
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it was reported that he was elected.

Election returns were not obtained

so quickly and definitely as in our
day.

Mr. Erb also made extensive im
provements at the hotel and its sur-

roundings. He tore down the old

kitchen attachment and erected a
larger and more commodious one,

and erected a barn and what is now
known as ''The Old Shed," to the

west of the hotel.

As this hotel was situated on the

old Paxtang road, it was a great stop-

ping place for the Conestoga wagons,
and many a thrilling adventure took
place in those times. The Paxtang
road did not run as the Harrisburg
and Downingtown turnpike now runs,

but passed between tne notel and the

"old shed," through the orchard to

Lauber's corner. The custom of those

days was for the horses to sleep close

to the wagon and the men on the

floor.

When this pike, or Horse Shoe
pike, as it was then called, was built

this hotel continued as a stopping

place for the Conestoga wagons and
the Irish drovers.

A memorable event took place In

November, 1833, when the great

shower of meteors visited this coun-

try. The hotel was crowded with

teamsters and drovers and the yard

with horses and cattle. Consternation

reigned, the horses and cattle mad*
unearthly yells, and strong men wept
and prayed, drinking and carousing

ceased and swearing was unknown.
Everybody thought the end of the

world was at hand. Eye witnesses

related to the writer years ago about
this memorable night and the mag-
nificent and brilliant display of the

skies on this night.

Upon one occasion a cavalcade of

fifty men on horseback made thei-

appearance at the "Red Lion" and
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asked the genial landlord for supper,

lodging and breakfast. Nothing
daunted, it was granted. The fatted

calf was killed, placed in the bake
oven and roasted in bulk, and suffi-

cient bread borrowed from the sur

rounding neighbors to feed the hun-

gry crowd who slept on the soft side

of a board at night and went away
highly pleased the next morning.
To show how one incident shapes

and determines the lives and desti-

nies of men and women happened in

this wise: On a pleasant autumn
forenoon, in the year 1841, Mr. Erb
was standing on the stone steps in

front of his hotel, when a man neatl/

dressed came riding along on a

splendidly-equipped horse of fine

form. He halted, dismounted, entered

the barroom and ordered dinner for

himself and his horse. He announced
that he was from Oley township,

Berks county, and wanted to buy a

farm in Lancaster county, having
sold his farm at that point.

The genial manner and manly bear-

ing of the man so pleased Mr. Erb 4

that he sent for his son, Hiram, who
had a farm for rent close by the one
running along the race beyond
Clay. The result was that the gentle-

man agreed to rent the farm and
wait a year to buy a farm, subject to

the approval of his wife. ,

Shortly afterward he and his wire

appeared and rented the farm, and
thus it happened that Samuel Meek,
of Oley township,Berks county,moved
on the farm of Mr. Erb's son, Hi-

ram, in 1842. It took two days to get

there. The teams, family, friends and
cattle rested at Reading over night.

A finer four-horse team than the

one owned by Mr. Samuel Meek
never graced that section before or

since, and when it reached the ears

of the managers at Elizabeth Fur-

nace, the day of arrival, they appear-
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ed the next day to see the splendid

stock. Another singular fact is, that

from that day to August 19, 1912,

some of the family of Samuel Meek
or his descendants have been em-
ployed in the family of John Erb and
his descendants, with possibly a year

©r two intermission.

John Erb retired from the hotel in

1851, and moved into a new brick

house erected by him, where he died

in 1862. Henry B. Erb, his youngest
son, kept the hotel until 1854, when
George W. Steinmetz, who was mar-
ried to Priscilla Cecilia Erb, the only

daughter of John Erb, moved on the

farm and kept the hotel until in tne

fall of 1855, when the local prohibi-

tion law went into effect. He resided

there in a private capacity until the

spring of 1868, when he began busi-

ness as a merchant in the new build

ing erected by him, and continued

until 1900. He also conducted a cigar

factory from 1884 to 1900, and dealt

in leaf tobacco from 1880 to 1900.

Mr. Steinmetz became the owner
of the farm and hotel stand in 1862.

Although it was a private house, the

elections continued to be held here,

and many humorous, pathetic and
thrilling incidents occurred which
space forbids to mention.

One of the surroundings of this

hotel that deserves more than a pass-

ing notice is the well on the west
side, between the hotel building and
the "old shed." The pump stands on
a rock, and on the one side is a large

opening, hence the well is known as

the ''bottomless well,"for when it was
dug, while all hands had gone to din-

ner, the tools which had been left in

it went to the bottom and were never
recovered. The well, which had
been perfectly dry. was filled with
water. Whether the tools landed in

China deponent salth not.

When the well on the east side.
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between the hotel building ana the

barn, was dug in 1863 a large open-

ing was found extending toward the

dwelling that admits a man, and is

of a considerable length.

When a heavy team passes rapidlv

through Clay, it often shakes the

houses. Some advance the theory

fhat Clay at one time in the history

of the world was a lake, on account

of the formation of the earth around

It, which is peculiar, indeed.

In 1868 the building again became
a public house, and was called "Th-3

Eagle Hotel."

Aaron B. Eitnier, now residing at

Lincoln, occupied the building from
1868 to 1870. Emanuel Weidman, late

of Brickerville, operateu it from 1870

to 1876, during which time a cattle

scales and a large new shed werq
erected. Daniel K. Witmyer, late of

Lincoln, moved there in 1876, and re-

mained until 1878, when Martin S.

Gross, late of Ephrata borough, occu-

pied it from 1878 to 1888, when John
J. Faust, now residindg at Allentown,

lived there one year.

George W. Steinmetz resumed con
trol of the hotel in 1889, and placed

the late William K. Furlow in charge

of it as manager, who continued in

that capacity until the fall of 1890,

when he resigned, and Lincoln M,
Christ served in that capacity one
month. He now resides at Hope-
land, Clay township. When he re-

signed, Martin S. Gross, late of

Ephrata borough, accepted the posi-

^tion and continued in it until April

1st, 1896.

In 1892, Mr. Stemmetz remodeled
it by making the whole structure a
three-story building and a better-

equipped edifice.

He disposed of his interests in the

property to Levi H. Miller, of Wil
mington, Del. Both are now de-

ceased.
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But who was the real owner from
April 1893, until the autumn of 1895,
is hard to determine. It was in liti-

gation during that period aria

changed hands frequently, sometimes
daily, or even twice a day. Finally, it

was sold at Sheriff's sale and bought
by the late J. Wesley Supplee, of

Philadelphia.

A. E. Lane, now residing at Clay,

then became the owner by purchas-
ing it from Mr. Supplee. This pur-

chase included the farm and store
building occupied by the writer as
tenant, who continued as such until

April 3, 1S99.

John L. Coldren, now deceased,

occupied the hotel two years.
In 1898, Isaac M. Christ, now re-

siding at Ephrata, moved there and
remained one year. He came from
Hopeland, in Clay township, a thriv
ing town, which Professor Roddy
also fails to mention, calling it New-
town, which name it lost in 1897.

when it became a postoffice.

John E. Wolf, also residing at Eph-
rata, went there in 1899, and left in

1901, and later was elected a Justice
of the Peace in Clay township m
1905.

David H. Snyder, now conducting
a hotel at Mechanicsburg, Upper Lea-
cock township, conducted this hotel
from 1901 to 1904.

William D. Wike had rented it in
the spring of 1904, but died there in

six weeks' time.

It was called "Wheelman's Rest"
instead of the Eagle Hotel—now It

goes by the name of the Clay Hotel.
Grant Steinmetz and his amiable

wife are the genial hosts of the Clay
Hotel since May 26, 1904, leaving
their fine farm in Elizabeth town-
ship to a tenant, which they had op-
erated for thirteen years. Both are
descendants of Michael Shank, men-
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tioned above as an early settler in

this section.

Mr. Steinmetz also takes great de-

light in horses, and has some fin©

blooded stock. He inherits this trait

from his father and grandfather.

Three of his uncles had the same
traits. In 1906 the bar-room was en-
larged by throwing the two original

rooms into one and otherwise im-
proved it.

The blacksmith shop, erected in

1863, was demolished m 1912, and an
up-to-date one built further up the
road, operated by Adam Mellinger,

who is the village blacksmith since
1893. Edwin H. Wealand is the sad-

dler man since 1884. Hiram L. Erb
had a general store from 1875 to

1900, when he died. His father was
associated with him part of that time.

Clay postoffice was established in

1873, the father of the writer was
connected with it until March 31,

1900.

The writer was either postmaster
or assistant postmaster from March
1, 1876, to April 15, 1899. A. E. Lane
is the present incumbent. Harry L.

Wealand is the genial 'Squire and
teaches the Hopeland Secondary
School.



Minutes of the March Meeting

Lancaster, Pa., March 3, 1916.

The regular meeting of the Lancas-

ter County Historical Society was held

this evening, with President Steinman

in the chair.

Miss Bausman, the librarian, pre-

sented the report for the past month,

as follows:

Bound Volumes—Blue Book of

Schuylkill County (by purchase);

Smull's Legislative Hand Book for

1915; School Laws of Pennsylvania

for 1915.

Magazines and Pamphlets—German
American Annals; American Philo-

sophical Society; Classification of the

Auxiliary Sciences of History-Library

of Congress; Linden Hall Echo; Bul-

letin of the New York Public Library

(two numbers) ; Bulletin of the Grand
Rapids Public Library; Bulletin of

the Carnegie Library, Pittsburgh.

Special Donations—A number of the

Society's pamphlets from Mr. M. T.

Garvin; two bronze medals, 1872, 1873,

concerning Bee Culture in Lancaster

county; two deeds concerning land

in Manor township, the dates being

November 13, 1776, and June 2, 1781,

from Miss Martha H. Davis; the orig-

inal paper showing that Jacob Leman
took the "Oath of Allegiance" to the

State of Pennsylvania, November 26,

1788, from Miss Adelia Leman; char-

ter of the "Friendship Fire Company,"
issued for its re-organization in 1858,

from Mrs. J. H. Baumgardner; a large

number of Indian arrow-heads, from
Miss Mazie E. Smith; a number of

(92)
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miscellaneous, newspapers dating from
1836, from Mr. H. L. Simon.

The following new members were
elected: Mrs. R. E. Fahnestock,

John A. Nauman, Esq., and Harry M.
Hoover.
The following were proposed for

membership:
Dr. Parke P. Breneman, Mrs. Mil-

dred E. S. Breneman, 146 East Walnut
street, city; Miss Catharine Zook, 42

South Prince street, city; Mr. J. L.

Ruth, 305 North West End avenue,

city; Mr. R. Karl Honaman, Franklin

and Marshall College, city; Dr. H. G.

Reemsnyder, Ephrata; Mr. A. F. Esp-
enshade, Pennsylvania State College,

State College; Mr. Harry C. Ewing,
Northwestern Bank Building, Port-

land, Oregon.
Miss Clark reported that the Mari-

etta Pilot of 1814-16 could be pur-

chased for $5, and the purchase was
authorized.

It was announced that the commit-
tee appointed to arrange for a social

affair consists of Miss Martha B.

Clark, Mrs. A. K. Hostetter, I. C. Ar-
nold, L. B. Herr, D. F. Magee, Esq., H.
Frank Eshleman, Esq., and C. B. Hol-
linger, chairman.
The paper of the evening was read

by Hiram E. Steinmetz, Esq., of Eph-
rata, his subject being, "History of

Clay and the Clay Hotel."

Mr. A. K. Hostetter read an article

from the Ephrata Review of June 3,

1904, by Dr. J R. Johns, which em-
phasized some of the points related by
Mr. Steinmetz in his paper.
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